
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

AGENDA

MARCH 8, 2018

6:00 P.M.
Roll Call.

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes: February 8, 2018

Preliminary Plats

(1) P-0318-11 Liberty Park Joint Venture, LLP Is Requesting Preliminary Plat Approval For
Liberty Park 18 Lot Townhomes. The Purpose For This Request Is To Begin 
Construction On A Townhome Development.  The Property Is Owned By 
Liberty Park Joint Venture, LLP and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills PR-1.

Final Plats

(2) P-0318-12 Sloss Real Estate Is Requesting Preliminary Plat Approval For Vestavia 
Village. The Purpose For This Request Is To Resurvey Lots & Vacated Right 
Of Way Into A Single Lot.  The Property Is Owned By Sloss Real Estate and Is 
Zoned Vestavia Hills B-2.

Rezoning/Conditional Use Recommendations:

Annexations:

(3) P-0318-05 Linda F. Craft Is Requesting Rezoning for 2300 St. Joseph Rd. from Jefferson 
County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2 For The Purpose Of Annexation.

(4) P-0318-06 Kevin & Georgia Holdefer Are Requesting Rezoning for 3640 Altadena Dr.
from Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2 For The Purpose Of 
Annexation.

(5) P-0318-07 Shades Mountain Baptist Church Is Requesting Rezoning for 1722 Vestaview 
Ln. from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 For The Purpose Of 
Annexation.

(6) P-0318-08 Niraj & Binta Parekh Are Requesting Rezoning for 2672 Dolly Ridge Rd. from
Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2 For The Purpose Of Annexation.



(7) P-0318-09 McCorquodale Properties, LLC Is Requesting Conditional Use Approval for
Dog & Cat Training, Boarding, And Daycare Located At 381 Summit Blvd., 
and 3191 Cahaba Heights Rd. The Property Is Owned By McCorquodale 
Properties, LLC And Is Zoned Vestavia Hills B-3.

(8) P-0318-10 Pine Tree Partners & Seed Corn, LLC Are Requesting Rezoning for 3127 Blue 
Lake Dr. & 4565 Pine Tree Cir. from Vestavia Hills B-1.2 to Vestavia Hills 
B-1.2 To Amend Previously Approved Site Plan.

Time of Adjournment.



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

MINUTES

FEBRUARY 8, 2018

6:00 P.M.

The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this 
date at 6:00 P.M. following posting/publication as required by Alabama law. The roll was called 
with the following:

MEMBERS PRESENT: Lyle Larson, Chairman
Cheryl Cobb
Erica Williamson Barnes
Fred Goodwin
Jim Brooks
Deloye Burrell

MEMBERS ABSENT: Greg Gilchrist
Blaine House
Rusty Weaver

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: Conrad Garrison, City Planner
Christopher Brady, City Engineer

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mr. Larson stated that the minutes of the meeting of January 11, 2018 are presented for approval.

MOTION Motion to approve minutes with a minor change was by Mrs. Barnes and second 
was by Mr. Brooks.  Voice vote as follows:

Mrs. Barnes – yes Mr. Brooks – yes
Mr. Burrell – abstained Mr. Goodwin – yes 
Mrs. Cobb – yes Mr. Larson – yes 
Motion Carried



Preliminary Plats

(1) P-0218-04 Liberty Park Joint Venture, LLP Is Requesting Preliminary Plat 
Approval For Readjustment of Land Use Boundaries At Liberty Park.
The Purpose For This Request Is To Amend Land Use Boundaries.  The 
Property Is Owned By Liberty Park Joint Venture, LLP and Is Zoned 
Vestavia Hills PNC.

Mr. Garrison and James Parsons from Shoel Engineering explained the background and location of 
the request.

Mr. Larson opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the Commission 
concerning this request, Mr. Larson closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion.

MOTION Mr. Burrell made a motion to approve Preliminary Plat Approval For Readjustment 
of Land Use Boundaries At Liberty Park. Second was by Mr. Goodwin. Motion was carried on a 
roll call; vote as follows:

Mrs. Barnes – yes Mr. Brooks – yes
Mr. Burrell – yes Mr. Goodwin – yes 
Mrs. Cobb – yes Mr. Larson – yes 
Motion Carried

Rezoning/Conditional Use Recommendations:

P-0218-03 Mike Swack Is Requesting Conditional Use Approval for Five Unrelated 
Adults Residing In a Single Family Dwelling Located At 220 Erwin 
Circle. The Property Is Owned By Mike Swack And Is Zoned Vestavia 
Hills R-2.

Mr. Garrison explained the background and location of the request.

Nick Goudreau of GK Homes (leasing agent) was present to answer any questions the Commission 
had. He stated he was unaware of the single family requirement for the home and is asking that the 
approval only last until the end of the lease term, July 31st.

Mr. Burrell stated he was concerned about setting precedent for this kind of request.

Mr. Goodwin sought particulars about the lease term and Mrs. Barnes asked if all residents are on 
the lease. Mr. Goudreau provided the information.

Mr. Larson opened the floor for a public hearing.  

Sam Romano, a next door neighbor, spoke in support for the request.



Mr. Larson closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion.

MOTION Mr. Goodwin made a motion to recommend Conditional Use Approval for Five 
Unrelated Adults Residing In a Single Family Dwelling Located At 220 Erwin Circle. Second was 
by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mrs. Barnes – no Mr. Brooks – no
Mr. Burrell – no Mr. Goodwin – no
Mrs. Cobb – no Mr. Larson – no

Motion Failed. Commission determined the applicants did not meet the burden of 
the Conditional Use.

Conrad Garrison, City Planner



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     MARCH 8, 2018

CASE: P-0318-11

REQUESTED ACTION: Preliminary Plat Approval For Liberty Park 18 Lot 
Townhomes

ADDRESS/LOCATION: Liberty Pkwy. & South Liberty Rd.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Liberty Park Joint Venture, LLP

REPRESENTING AGENT: Schoel Engineering

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Preliminary plat is to add roads/alleys and 
infrastructure to serve a 18 lot townhome development. Detailed plans have been 
submitted to the Engineering Dept. for review. This will be part of the overall Liberty 
Park Village development

LIBERTY PARK MASTER PLAN: This request is consistent with the plan for 
higher density residential development.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted









1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     MARCH 8, 2018

CASE:  P-0318-12

REQUESTED ACTION: Final Plat Approval For Vestavia Village

ADDRESS/LOCATION: Canyon Rd./Chestnut St.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Sloss Real Estate

REPRESENTING AGENT: John Coleman, GMC

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Plat is to resurvey lots to match rezoning plan and 
vacation of ROW. Plat is final step in rezoning plan

VESTAVIA HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: This request is consistent with 
the plan for retail/mixed use.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: No problems noted

4. Building Safety Review: No problems noted







b

a

RESURVEY

1

VESTAVIA VILLAGE 

1

CBHM170052

Issued

MTB
JRW sheetof

ISSUEDATE

drawn by:
checked by:

2701 1st Ave South, Suite 100   |   Birmingham, AL 35233
Tel  205.879.4462   |   GMCNETWORK.COM

R
E

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 O
F 

LO
T 

E
 M

A
P

 B
O

O
K

 6
0 

P
A

G
E

 3
8;

 L
O

T 
A

 M
A

P
 B

O
O

K
60

 P
A

G
E

 3
9;

 L
O

T 
6 

,7
 A

N
D

 L
O

T 
27

-3
0 

B
LO

C
K

 1
4 

 L
O

T 
1-

4 
B

LO
C

K
 1

8
M

A
P

 B
O

O
K

 7
 P

A
G

E
 4

1



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     MARCH 8, 2018

CASE: P-0318-05

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2300 St. Joseph Rd.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Linda F. Craft

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
1/8/18 with the passage of Ordinance 2740. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 









1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     MARCH 8, 2018

CASE: P-0318-06

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3640 Altadena Dr.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Kevin & Georgia Holdefer

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
1/8/18 with the passage of Ordinance 2739. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 









1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     MARCH 8, 2018

CASE: P-0318-07

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 1722 Vestaview Ln.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Shades Mountain Baptist Church

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
1/8/18 with the passage of Ordinance 2738. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 









1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     MARCH 8, 2018

CASE: P-0318-08

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 2672 Dolly Ridge Rd.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Niraj & Binta Parekh

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
1/8/18 with the passage of Ordinance 2737. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 









1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     MARCH 8, 2018

CASE: P-0318-09

REQUESTED ACTION: Conditional Use Approval for Dog & Cat Training, 
Boarding, And Daycare

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 381 Summit Blvd., and 3191 Cahaba Heights Rd.

APPLICANT/OWNER: McCorquodale Properties, LLC

REPRESNTING AGENT: Jesse P. Evans III

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Creative Dog Training, Inc. is seeking to move across 
the street to the vacant McCorquodale building. Improvements will be made to the 
exterior of the building to allow fenced dog relief areas. A detailed description and 
site plan, provided by the applicant, is attached.

CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The request is consistent with the 
Cahaba Heights Community Plan for retail/mixed use.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No problems noted.

2. City Engineer Review:  No problems noted.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 



2

MOTION Mr. Wolfe made a motion to recommend rezoning approval 3118 Pine Tree Dr.
from Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills B-3 With A Conditional Use For A Kennel with the 
following conditions:

A. Zoning limited to B-2 uses;
B. Strongly encourage high STC sound rating for exterior walls.

Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Burrell – yes
Mr. Wolfe – yes Mr. Brooks – yes
Mr. Weaver – yes Mr. House – yes 
Mrs. Cobb – yes Mr. Larson – yes 
Motion carried



















1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     MARCH 8, 2018

CASE: P-0318-10

REQUESTED ACTION: Amend site plan for B-1.2 zoning

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3127 Blue Lake Dr., 4565 Pine Tree Cir.

APPLICANT/OWNER: Pine Tree Partners & Seed Corn, LLC

REPRESNTING AGENT: Derek Waltchack

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property is on Blue Lake Dr. and on the corner of 
Colonnade Parkway and Pine Tree Cir. Property was rezoned on 10/12/15 by City 
Council to B-1.2. As required by code, site plans are “locked in” with the approval of 
the B-1.2 zoning, requiring any major changes to a plan to be re-heard in public 
hearings and subject to Council approval. This is not a land use change. 
Applicant proposes flipping the site plan and moving the building to the east side of 
the property. The proposed changes appear to meet all zoning requirements.

CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The request is consistent with the 
Cahaba Heights Community Plan for retail/mixed use.
STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  Approval needed on drainage.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 














